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Defendants are not based on the Banker Defendants’ “personal participation” or
“unbridled control” over the other defendants. They are, instead, based on fatally flawed
allegations that the Banker Defendants “knew, or by the exercise of reasonable care
should have known” of other parties’ allegedly improper lending practices, and that the
Bankers “encouraged, caused, ratified, or permitted” those practices. (See FAC, ] 52,
55-56.) The Emery and Perfect 10 cases are dispositive of Plaintiff’s claims against the

Bankers under Section 17200 and Section 17500. Those claims must be dismissed.

III. THERE IS NO PRIVATE RIGHT OF ACTION FOR MOST OF THE
STATUTORY VIOLATIONS PLAINTIFF ALLEGES

Several of plaintiff’s scattershot allegations of statutory violations fail for an ]
additional fundamental reason: There simply is no private right of action to enforce
them.¢ In determining whether a statute provides a private remedy, the “central inquiry
[is] whether Congress intended to create, either expressly or by implication, a private
cause of action.” Touche Ross & Co. v. Redington, 442 U.S. 560, 575, 99 S.Ct. 2479, 61
L.Ed.2d 82 (1979). If the statute does not expressly provide for a private right of action,
the court must determine whether Congress nonetheless implicitly intended to create
one. Northwest Airlines, Inc. v. Transport Workers, 451 U.S. 77, 90-91, 101 S.Ct. 1571,
67 L.Ed.2d 750 (1981). “Unless this congressional intent can be inferred from the
language of the statute, the statutory structure, or some other source, the essential
predicate for implication for a private remedy simply does not exist.” Thompson v.
Thompson, 484 U.S. 174, 179, 108 S.Ct. 513, 98 L.Ed.2d 512 (1988) (internal citations
omitted). Here, Plaintiff seeks to invoke several federal statutes that he plainly has no
right to enforce.

Most obviously, Plaintiff seeks to challenge “defendants™ compliance with

numerous criminal statutes found in Title 18. Of course, criminal law is enforced by the

¢ Specifically, Plaintiff cannot recover for alleged violations of the following statutes,
which are listed in the FAC: 12 U.S.C. § 1828; 15 U.S.C. §§ 13a, 52, 57a, 78k-1; 18
U.S.C. §§ 371, 1005, 1007, 1014, 1341, 1343, 1344, 1348, 1349, 1350(Db).
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government, not private individuals. Hence, as the Supreme Court has recognized, a
private right of action is “rarely implied” under a criminal statute. Chrysler Corp. v.
Brown, 441 U.S. 281, 316, 99 S.Ct. 1705, 60 L.Ed.2d 208 (1979). In those few instances
where a criminal statute was found to imply a private right of action, there was a clear
“statutory basis for inferring that a civil cause of action of some sort lay in favor of
someone.” Cortv. Ash, 422 U.S. 66, 79, 95 S.Ct. 2080, 45 L.Ed.2d 26 (1975). By
contrast, the typical “bare criminal statute, with absolutely no indication that civil
enforcement of any kind [ils available to anyone,” does not confer a private right of
action. Id. None of the criminal statutes Plaintiff cites are the rare exceptions that
grant private citizens a right of enforcement.

For example, Plaintiff asserts — without a scintilla of factual support — that all
defendants violated the mail and wire fraud statutes, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1341, 1343. (FAC, {1
50, 54, 62.) Three Circuits have expressly held that “Congress did not intend to create a
private right of action in enacting either the mail or wire fraud statutes.” (Emphasis
added.) Wisdom v. First Midwest Bank, 167 F.3d 402, 408 (8th Cir. 1999); see also Ryan
v. Ohio Edison Co., 611 F.2d 1170, 1178 (6th Cir. 1979); Bell Health-Mor, Inc. 549 F.2d
342, 346 (5t Cir. 1977); Napper v. Anderson, Henley, Shields, Bradford and Pritchard,
500 F.2d 634, 636 (5t Cir. 1974), cert. denied, 423 U.S. 837. In fact, as far as the Banker
Defendants are aware, “no court has interpreted the statute[s] to imply a civil remedy.”
Ryan, 611 F.2d at 1178.

Similarly, Plaintiff alleges that all defendants violated the bank fraud statute, 18
US.C. § 1344. (FAC, 19 50, 54, 62.) Again, every decision on record has held that there
is no private right of action under this statute. Milgrom v. Burstein, 374 F.Supp.2d
523, 529 (E.D.Ky. 2005); Park Nat. Bank of Chicago v. Michael Oil Co., 702 F.Supp. 703,
704 (N.D. I1l. 1989). Because a comparable civil cause of action for fraud already exists,
there is “no need to create a new federal remedy by employing a private right of recovery
under thlis] criminal statute[ ].” Id.

The result is the same with Plaintiff’s allegation that all defendants engaged in a
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conspiracy to defraud the United States in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371. (FAC, ] 54, 62.)
“It is clear that no private right of action can exist under 18 U.S.C. § 371.” Rapaport v.
Republic of Mexico, 619 F.Supp. 1476, 1480 (D.D.C. 1985); see also Lamont v. Haig, 539
F.Supp. 552, 558 (D.S.D. 1982); Rockefeller v. United States Court of Appeals Office for
the Tenth Circuit Judges, 248 F.Supp.2d 17, 23 (D. D.C. 2003); Dugar v. Coughlin, 613
F.Supp. 849, 852, n. 1 (S.D.N.Y. 1983).

It is further abundantly clear that Plaintiff has no right to pursue enforcement of
18 U.S.C. § 1014, which prohibits making false statements that overvalue property.
(FAC, 19 54, 62.) Yet again, the reported decisions are unanimous: There is no private
right of action for violations of this section. Fed. Sav. And Loan Ins. Corp. v. Reeves, 816
F.2d 130, 137 (4th Cir. 1987); Olympia Capital Corp. v. Newman, 276 F.Supp. 646, 657
(C.D. Cal. 1967); Park Nat. Bank of Chicago, supra, 702 F.Supp. at 704.

Nor can Plaintiff rely upon 18 U.S.C. § 1005, which prohibits, inter alia, a bank
from making false entries in any book, report, or statement. (FAC, ] 54, 62.) As the
Seventh Circuit has held, this criminal statute “in no way confer[s] jurisdiction as to [sic]
civil controversies...” Daviditis v. National Bank of Matoon, 262 F.2d 884, 886 (7th Cir.
1959).

Of course, given the sheer number of criminal statutes Plaintiff invokes, courts
have not expressly addressed the implied private right of action question for each
statute at issue. But even where it has not been resolved, there is no basis for departing
from the rule that the typical criminal statute engenders no private right of action. Cort
v. Ash, supra, 422 U.S. at 79.

For example, Plaintiff alleges that all defendants violated 18 U.S.C. § 1007, which
prohibits making false statements to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. (FAC,
19 54, 62.) Nowhere does this spare statute suggest that Plaintiff, a private citizen and
former mortgage broker, should have a right to enforce a criminal statute regulating
fraud perpetrated on the FDIC. Indeed, the very purpose of the statute is to protect the
FDIC, not Plaintiff or other private citizens. See D’Oench, Duhme & Co. v. FDIC, 315
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U.S. 447, 460-462, 62 S.Ct. 676, 86 L.Ed. 956 (1942). Only the FDIC can prosecute
violations of this section; it does not need Plaintiff’s help.

Similarly, Plaintiff has no private right of action (and no civil remedy) to pursue
claims that all defendants violated the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, 18 U.S.C., §§ 1348, 1349,
1350(b). (FAC, 91 50, 54.) Among other things, the Act requires periodic financial
statements filed with the SEC to be certified. 18 U.S.C. § 1350(b). If these requirements
are violated, then the Act provides only for criminal penalties. 18 U.S.C. § 1350(c)(2).
There is no mention of civil remedies or any hint that private enforcement is allowed.

Plaintiff fares no better in his attempt to enforce violations of other federal
statutes. For example, Plaintiff alleges that defendants violated the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 41 et seq. by disseminating false advertisements. (FAC,

11 50, 54; citing 15 U.S.C. § 52.) As the Ninth Circuit has recognized, the FTC Act
authorizes enforcement only by the FTC, not private individuals. 15 U.S.C. § 45(b);
Carlson v. Coca-Cola Co., 483 F.2d 279, 280 (9tk Cir. 1973) (FTC Act “vests initial
remedial power solely in the Federal Trade Commission.”); Dreisbach v. Murphy, 658
F.2d 720, 730 (9t Cir. 1981). Hence, “there is no private cause of action for violations of
the FTC Act.” Fulton v. Hecht, 580 F.2d 1243, 1248, n.2 '(5th Cir. 1978), cert. denied, 440
U.S. 981; see also Federal Trade Commission v. Klesner, 280 U.S. 19, 25-27, 50 S.Ct. 1,
74 L.Ed. 138 (1929); American Airlines v. Christensen, 967 F.2d 410, 414 (10tk Cir 1992).

Likewise, Plaintiff has no right to enforce the Banker Defendants’ alleged
violation of the Robinson-Patman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 13a, which prohibits, inter alia,
selling goods at unreasonably low prices. (FAC, q 58.) The Supreme Court has
expressly held “that a private cause of action does not lie” for alleged violations of 15
U.S.C. § 13a. Nashville Milk Co. v. Carnation Co., 355 U.S. 373, 382, 78 S.Ct. 352, 2
L.Ed.2d 340 (1958); Safeway Stores v. Vance, 355 U.S. 389, 390, 78 S.Ct. 358, 2 L.Ed.2d
350 (1958); see also Englander Motors, Inc. v. Ford Motor Co., 293 F.2d 802, 803-04 (6th
Cir. 1961).

Similarly, Plaintiff has alleged that defendants violated a litany of provisions in
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the Securities Exchange Act, including 15 U.S.C., § 78k-1, which generally concerns the
regulation of a “national market system.” (FAC, { 69.) However, enforcement of this
section is expressly delegated to the Securities and Exchange Commission — and no one
else. See, e.g., 15 U.S.C,, § 78k-1(b)(6) and (c)(3)(A). Therefore, there is no private
remedy for individuals like Plaintiff. Scattered Corp. v. Chicago Stock Exchange, Inc., 98
F.3d 1004, 1006-1007 (7t Cir. 1996).

Finally, Plaintiff has no right to seek relief for the Banker Defendants’ alleged
violation of 12 U.S.C. § 1828, which establishes various regulations for insured
depository institutions. (FAC, q 54.) Plaintiff does not explain how he believes the
Banker Defendants violated this section, which regulates a wide variety of subject
matters. However, even if Plaintiff could proffer any such explanation, the only decision
on record holds that Congress did not intend to imply a private cause of action through
this section. Lode v. Leonardo, 557 F.Supp. 675, 678-680 (N.D.III. 1982).

Even if Plaintiff had stated a proper factual basis for his claims (which he has
not), he cannot recover under most of the statutes he cited in the FAC. This is yet
another reason why Plaintiff’s claims fail as a matter of law, and the Banker
Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss should be granted.

IV. THE FAC SHOULD BE DISMISSED FOR FAILURE TO STATE A CLAIM
Even if this Court determines that Plaintiff has standing to bring any of his
deficient claims, the FAC still should be dismissed because Plaintiff has failed to state a

claim upon which relief can be granted. Plaintiffs generalized FAC does not meet the
most basic pleading requirement—a “short and plain statement of the claim showing
that the pleader is entitled to relief.” FRCP 8(a)(2). Far from being a “plain statement,”
Plaintiff’s complaint is an incomprehensible and unintelligible pleading that fails to set
forth the nature of his grievances against the Banker Defendants, the legal theories that
give rise to his claims, or the grounds upon which relief may be provided.

At best, the FAC is a mere recitation of state and federal statutes that he

conclusorily asserts the defendants — lumped together as a whole — violated. Such
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“labels and conclusions” fall woefully short of the requirements of Rule 8. Bell Atlantic
v. Twombly, 550 U.S.---, 127 S.Ct. 1955, 1964, 167 L.Ed.2d 929 (2007) (“Plaintiff’s
obligation to provide the ‘grounds’ of his ‘entitlement’ to relief requires more than labels
and conclusions. . . [flactual allegations must be enough to raise a right to a relief above
the speculative level.”); Epstein v. Wash. Energy Co., 83 F.3d 1136, 1140 (9t Cir. 1996)
(“[Clonclusory allegations of law and unwarranted inferences are insufficient to defeat a
motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim.”).

As the Supreme Court recently reiterated, every complaint must, at a minimum,
“give the defendant fair notice of what the . . . claim is and the grounds upon which it
rests.” Bell Atlantic, supra, 127 S.Ct. at 1955, citing Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 47,
78 S.Ct. 99, 2 L.Ed.2d 80 (1957). Even with the most liberal reading of the FAC, the
Banker Defendants have been unable to discern any cognizable legal theory or factual
predicate giving rise to a claim properly asserted against them.

Such pleading deprives each defendant of a fair and meaningful epportunity to
defend itself. FRCP 8(a); Appalachian Enters. v. ePayment Solutions, Ltd., No. 01-CV-
11502 (GBD), 2004 WL 2813121, at *6 (S.D.N.Y. Dec. 8, 2004). The FAC does not
identify any particular wrong that the Banker Defendants have committed, and they
should not be forced to guess which acts they “either committed, caused others to
commit, ratified or endorsed.”” As such, the Banker Defendants can neither answer the
FAC nor prepare for trial. Dismissal of the FAC is proper, where, as here, the complaint
is “so confused, ambiguous, vague, or otherwise unintelligible that its true substance, if
any, is well disguised.” Salahuddin v. Cuomo, 861 F.2d 40, 42 (2d Cir. 1988).

Beyond this, Plaintiff’s unspecified allegations of fraud pervade every single cause

of action. FRCP 9(b) requires that “in alleging fraud or mistake, a party must state with

7 See, e.g., FAC q 46: “At all relevant times, each Defendant has either committed the
acts, caused others to commit the acts, ratified the commission of the acts, endorsed or
permitted others to commit the acts alleged in this Complaint and has made, caused
ratified, or permitted others to commit the acts alleged in this Complaint.”
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particularity the circumstances constituting the fraud or mistake.” This FAC, which
identifies neither what the Bankers have allegedly done nor how those unspecified
actions might have harmed Plaintiff, fails completely to meet FRCP 9(b)’s standard. As
Plaintiff’s fraud allegations are interwoven in every purported cause of action, this
failing mandates dismissal of the entire FAC.
V. CONCLUSION

For the reasons discussed above, the Banker Defendants respectfully request that
this Court grant their Motion to Dismiss the Complaint pursuant to Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure 12(b)(1) and 12(b)(6).

/s/ Peter R. Boutins

DATED: May , 2008

PETER R. BOUTIN
peter.boutin@kyl.com
CHRISTOPHER A. STECHER
christopher.stecher@kyl.com
KEESAL, YOUNG & LOGAN

Four Embarcadero Center, Suite 1500
San Francisco, CA 94111

(415) 398-6000

Attorneys for Defendants
CITIGROUP INC.; SANFORD WEILL; and
CHARLES PRINCE

/s/
DATED: May , 2008

JAMI WINTZ McKEON, CASB No. 237923
jmckeon@morganlewis.com

ELIZABETH A. FROHLICH, CASB No. 195454
efrohlich@morganlewis.com

MORGAN LEWIS & BOCKIUS

One Market

Spear Street Tower

San Francisco, CA 94105

(415) 442-1000

Attorneys for Defendant
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP, INC.

8 I hereby attest that all parties to this Motion have signed this Motion or have
authorized me to sign the Motion on their behalf as indicated by a “conformed” signature
(/S/). Keesal, Young & Logan has all signatures or written authorizations in its files.
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/s/

JOHN B. SULLIVAN, CASB No. 96742
jbs@severson.com

REGINA J. MCCLENDON, CASB No. 184669
rjm@severson.com

ERIK KEMP, CASB No. 246196
ek@severson.com

SEVERSON & WERSON

One Embarcadero Center, Suite 2600

San Francisco, CA 94111

(415) 398-3344

Attorneys for Defendant
THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES, INC. and
JAMES CAYNE
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